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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
Background to the Company
UTI Goldfinch Funds Plc (the “Company”) is structured an open-ended investment company with variable capital incorporated with
limited liability in Ireland under the Companies Act, 2014 (as amended) with registration number 5141549 and established as an
Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities pursuant to the European Communities (Undertakings for Colle ctive
Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 as amended and the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013
(Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 (the Central Bank “UCITS
Regulations”). The Company commenced operations on 16 July 2015.
The registered office of the Company is, 33 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay, Dublin 2, Ireland.
The Company is structured as an umbrella fund, which may ultimately consist of different funds (individually the “Fund” collectively the
“Funds”), each comprising one or more share classes. During the financial year, the Company had two Funds in operation namely the
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund and UTI India Balanced Fund (individually the “Fund” collectively the “Funds”), which are
denominated in USD.
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund
Investment objective
The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve medium to long-term growth through investment primarily in growth oriented
Indian stocks which are listed on the Mumbai Stock Exchange and the National Stock Exchange in India. The Fund intends to achieve
its investment objective by investing primarily in a diversified portfolio of equities and equity related securities of (i) l arge, mid and
small-cap companies that have their registered office in India and are listed on Recognised Exchanges worldwide, (ii) large, mid and
small-cap companies that exercise a preponderant part of their economic activity in India and are listed on Recognised Exchanges
worldwide and/or (iii) large, mid and small-cap companies whose equity and equity related securities are listed, traded or dealt in on
Indian stock exchanges listed in Appendix II of the Prospectus.
The share classes and the launch dates of these share classes are detailed below:
Name of Fund
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund

Launch Date
15 July 2015
15 July 2015
24 July 2015
29 August 2016
14 March 2017
06 June 2017
10 October 2019

Share Class
USD Institutional Accumulating
USD Retail Accumulating
EUR Institutional Accumulating
EUR Retail Accumulating
GBP RDR Accumulating
USD RDR Accumulating
USD RDR II Distributing

UTI India Balanced Fund
Investment objective
The investment objective of the Fund is to provide moderate growth as well as income using an active asset allocation approach to
Indian equity and debt. The Fund aims to achieve a higher return for investors by dynamic asset allocation between debt and equity,
which will be done on a quarterly basis. The equity portion of the Fund will invest in a diversified portfolio of stocks, with
predominant exposure to large cap companies. The debt portion of the scheme will be invested in high quality fixed income
instruments.
The share classes and the launch dates of these share classes are detailed below:
Name of Fund
UTI India Balanced Fund

Launch Date
27 April 2018
25 May 2018
28 November 2018
28 November 2018
18 July 2019
30 July 2019
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Share Class
USD Institutional Distributing
USD Retail Distributing
Class C USD Accumulating
Class C USD Distributing
USD Retail Accumulating
USD Institutional Accumulating

UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
Background to the Company (continued)
Calculation of net asset value of shares
The Net Asset Value of each Fund or, if there are different Classes within a Fund, each Class will be calculated by the Administrator as
at the Valuation Point (being 12 noon Irish time) on each Dealing Day in accordance with the Articles. The Net Asset Value of a Fund
shall be determined as at the Valuation Point for the relevant Dealing Day by valuing the assets of the relevant Fund (including income
accrued but not collected) and deducting the liabilities of the relevant Fund (including a provision for duties and charges, accrued
expenses and fees and all other liabilities).
The Net Asset Value attributable to a Class shall be determined as at the Valuation Point for the relevant Dealing Day by cal culating
that portion of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund attributable to the relevant Class as at the Valuation Point subject to
adjustment to take account of assets and/or liabilities attributable to the Class. Accordingly, the Net Asset Value per Share of the
different Classes of Shares can differ within each Fund as a result of the declaration/payment of dividends, differing fee and cost
structure for each Class of Shares. The Net Asset Value of a Fund will be expressed in the Base Currency of the Fund, or in such other
currency as the Directors may determine either generally or in relation to a particular Class or in a specific, case.
The Net Asset Value per Share shall be calculated as at the Valuation Point on or with respect to each Dealing Day by dividing the Net
Asset Value of the relevant Fund or attributable to a Class by the total number of Shares in issue or deemed to be in issue in the Fund or
Class at the relevant Valuation Point and rounding the resulting total to 4 decimal places.
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund
Investment Manager’s Report
Fund Commentary:
For the USD Institutional Class, during the period, the benchmark MSCI India Index (USD) appreciated by 17.41%, while the
portfolio NAV appreciated by 20.17% (from 11.67 on 31st October 2018 to 14.02 on 31st October 2019) outperforming the
benchmark by 2.76%.

Returns

1 Year

2 Year*

3 Year*

4 Year*

Fund

20.17%

5.18%

10.86%

10.21%

MSCI

17.41%

1.24%

8.14%

7.12%

OP / (UP)

2.76%

3.94%

2.72%

3.09%

*Annualized Returns
The portfolio’s outperformance over the benchmark in the one year period was driven primarily by overweight position in
Financial Services, Consumer Goods, Healthcare services and Industrial Manufacturing and underweight position in Metals.
On the other hand, underweight position in Energy contributed negatively to the performance. In terms of individual stocks,
the key positive contributors were Bajaj Finance, Info Edge India, Berger Paints, Kotak Mahindra Bank and Dr. Lal Pathlabs.
Underweight positions in Indiabulls Housing Finance and Mahindra & Mahindra also contributed positively. The key
underperforming stocks during the period were RBL Bank, eClerx Services ltd and IndusInd Bank. Underweight positions in
Bharat Petroleum Corporation ltd, Reliance Industries and Hindustan Unilever also impacted negatively. Refer to the annexure
for detailed performance attribution.
Market Commentary:
Global Events – The US economy grew by an annualized 1.9% percent in the Third quarter of 2019, following a growth rate
of 3.1% and 2% in the First and Second quarter of 2019. For the year, annual 2018 real GDP increased by 2.9%. The U.S.
Federal Reserve raised its key interest rate to 2.25% - 2.5% in December policy (for the fourth time in 2018). It held its
benchmark short-term interest rate steady in the range of 2.25%-2.5% till May Policy and signaled little appetite to adjust them
any time soon. In July, September and October Policy meeting, the Fed lowered its benchmark rate by 25 bps each to a range
of 1.50% to 1.75%. The Fed also cut the interest it pays to banks on cash reserves above the required level by 30 bps to 1.80%.
The Fed said it will "monitor the implications of incoming information for the economic outlook as it assesses the appropriate
path" of its target interest rate.
China’s economy grew by 6.4% in the fourth quarter of 2018, 6.4% in first Quarter of 2019, 6.2% in second Quarter and 6.0%
in third quarter, the slowest quarterly growth rate since 1992. For all of 2018, the world’s second-largest economy grew 6.6%
— its slowest expansion in 28 years and cooling from a revised 6.8% in 2017. Premier Li Keqiang set the country’s growth at
6.0% to 6.5%, down from a target of 6.5% set last year. China has leaned largely on fiscal stimulus to underpin growth this
year, announcing massive tax cuts worth nearly 2 trillion yuan and a quota of 2.15 trillion yuan for special bond issuance by
local governments aimed at boosting infrastructure construction.
U.S.-China tariffs could cut global economic output by 0.5% in 2020, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) warned. The
trade tensions had already contributed to the IMF cutting 0.4% from its 2019 growth forecast in April to 3.3%. The IMF
predicted 3.6% global growth for 2020, but said this outlook is vulnerable to trade tensions, uncertainty over Britain’s exit
from the European Union, and uncertain recoveries in some stressed economies such as Argentina and Turkey.
Domestic Events - Q3 and Q4 FY19 Real GDP growth came in at 6.6% and 5.8% respectively. Full year FY19 GDP grew at
6.8%, lower than the government’s estimate of 7%. Fiscal support to spur demand (agriculture and middle class) remained
evident in the Interim Budget. Monetary support also commenced with rate cut in February. Slower growth in Q4FY19 was
entirely driven by the manufacturing sector, as services sector growth and total consumption (private + government) grew at a
healthy pace. Q1FY20 GDP growth of 5% YoY exhibited accentuation of growth concerns driven by a slowdown in domestic
private demand amidst lackluster private investment and a global slowdown. The NBFC crisis emanating last year, stretched
bank and corporate balance sheets, and lower rural and urban demand have also played a part in the moderating of the growth
rate.
CPI moderated to 1.97% for January (2.19% in December) before reverting back to 3.99% in September (3.21% in August).
While there has been a rising trend in CPI over the last few months, it remains below the target level of 4%. Weak base and
uptick in food prices led to inch up in food inflation. Headline core inflation eased to 4.2% in September, 2019. FY19 headline
CPI and core inflation have averaged 3.43% and 5.81% respectively.
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund
Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Market Commentary: (continued)
In December Policy, RBI left the Repo rate unchanged at 6.5%, however since February Policy, driven by consistently benign
inflation and the need to provide support for growth, RBI cut the Repo rate from 6.5% to 5.15 % (135 bps) and changed its
stance to ‘Accommodative’ from ‘neutral’. In October policy, RBI revised its inflation projection to 3.4% for Q2FY20 (revised
higher from 3.1% in August policy), 3.5%-3.7% in H2FY20 and 3.6% in Q1FY21. FY20 GDP projection was lowered to 6.1%
(from 6.9% in August).
The Finance Minister presented the Union Budget for FY19-20 with a clear focus on providing a growth impetus to the
economy through support for the agriculture sector and providing higher discretionary income in the hands of the middle class.
Nominal GDP growth was projected at 12.3% for FY19 and 11.5% for FY20. In order to provide for the growth impetus, the
Finance Minister (FM) has allowed for a slip in fiscal deficit target for FY19 and FY20 taking it to 3.4% of GDP in both years
(compared to the roadmap of 3.3% for FY19 and 3.0% for FY20 set in the previous budget). Going forward, the FM reiterated
her intention to continue on fiscal consolidation with a Fiscal Deficit target of 3% for FY21 and FY22.
The Finance minister, to promote growth and investment, has proposed to reduce the effective income tax rates of domestic
companies, which was ~35%, to 25.17% subject to a condition of companies forfeiting other incentives or exemptions. This
reduction in income tax rates would effectively increase the earnings of companies as the benefit of reduced tax would flow
down to EPS and eventually improve the Return on Equity. Indian corporate tax rate is now in line with global standards and
removes the disadvantage faced by the Indian corporate sector. This also provides the ability for the corporate sector to pass on
these benefits to consumers by way of discounts / promotions which can provide an impetus to an otherwise sluggish demand
scenario. In addition, there may also be a revival in capital investment by the private sector since the post-tax returns for a
number of projects will improve. There could be benefits of making India seem more competitive internationally as an
investment destination and attract higher FDI flows.
Outlook:
While the frontline indices continue to make new all-time highs, there is a gradual revival in momentum within the mid and
small cap space as well. Several steps being taken by the government, the most recent one being the announcement of INR 102
trillion National Infrastructure Pipeline, and some respite in the US-China trade conflict has given rise to expectations that
there could be a more broad-based rally in the market. Segments of the economy that had been subdued so far, primarily
infrastructure and export-oriented sectors, may start to see some pick-up in activity. This shall gradually also reflect in
improvement in consumer sentiment. However, the upcoming budget for FY20-21 will be keenly awaited. We continue to
remain positive on India’s long-term growth potential.
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
UTI Indian Balanced Fund
Investment Manager’s Report
Fund Performance vs. Customized Benchmark (As on 31st October 2019)
Fund / Index Name

1 Month

3 Month

6 Month

1 Year

YTD

UTI India Balanced Fund - USD Institutional
Distributing Class

1.82

2.68

4.05

16.69

7.05

50% MSCI India + 50% CRISIL STBFI

1.52

0.86

2.21

16.23

6.50

Market Commentary
Global Events –
The US economy grew by an annualized 1.9% percent in the Third quarter of 2019, following a growth rate of 3.1% and 2% in
the First and Second quarter of 2019. For the year, annual 2018 real GDP increased by 2.9%. The U.S. Federal Reserve raised
its key interest rate to 2.25% - 2.5% in December policy (for the fourth time in 2018). It held its benchmark short-term interest
rate steady in the range of 2.25%-2.5% till May Policy and signaled little appetite to adjust them any time soon. In July,
September and October Policy meeting, the Fed lowered its benchmark rate by 25 bps each to a range of 1.50% to 1.75%. The
Fed also cut the interest it pays to banks on cash reserves above the required level by 30 bps to 1.80%. The Fed said it will
"monitor the implications of incoming information for the economic outlook as it assesses the appropriate path" of its target
interest rate.
China’s economy grew by 6.4% in the fourth quarter of 2018, 6.4% in first Quarter of 2019, 6.2% in second Quarter and 6.0%
in third quarter, the slowest quarterly growth rate since 1992. For all of 2018, the world’s second-largest economy grew 6.6%
— its slowest expansion in 28 years and cooling from a revised 6.8% in 2017. Premier Li Keqiang set the country’s growth at
6.0% to 6.5%, down from a target of 6.5% set last year. China has leaned largely on fiscal stimulus to underpin growth this
year, announcing massive tax cuts worth nearly 2 trillion yuan and a quota of 2.15 trillion yuan for special bond issuance by
local governments aimed at boosting infrastructure construction.
U.S.-China tariffs could cut global economic output by 0.5% in 2020, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) warned. The
trade tensions had already contributed to the IMF cutting 0.4% from its 2019 growth forecast in April to 3.3%. The IMF
predicted 3.6% global growth for 2020, but said this outlook is vulnerable to trade tensions, uncertainty over Britain’s exit
from the European Union, and uncertain recoveries in some stressed economies such as Argentina and Turkey.
Domestic Events - Q3 and Q4 FY19 Real GDP growth came in at 6.6% and 5.8% respectively. Full year FY19 GDP grew at
6.8%, lower than the government’s estimate of 7%. Fiscal support to spur demand (agriculture and middle class) remained
evident in the Interim Budget. Monetary support also commenced with rate cut in February. Slower growth of Q4FY19 was
entirely driven by the manufacturing sector, as services sector growth and total consumption (private + government) grew at
healthy pace. Q1FY20 GDP growth of 5% YoY exhibited accentuation of growth concerns driven by a slowdown in domestic
private demand amidst lackluster private investment and a global slowdown. The NBFC crisis emanating last year, stretched
bank and corporate balance sheets, and lower rural and urban demand have also played a part in moderation in growth rate.
CPI moderated to 1.97% for January (2.19% in December) before reverting back to 3.99% in September (3.21% in August).
While there has been a rising trend in CPI over the last few months, it remains below the target level of 4%. Weak base and
uptick in food prices led to inch up in food inflation. Headline core inflation eased to 4.2% in September, 2019. FY19 headline
CPI and core inflation have averaged 3.43% and 5.81% respectively.
In December Policy, RBI left the Repo rate unchanged at 6.5%, however since February Policy, driven by consistently benign
inflation and the need to provide support for growth, RBI cut the Repo rate from 6.5% to 5.15 % (135 bps) and changed its
stance to ‘Accommodative’ from ‘neutral’. In October policy, RBI revised its inflation projection to 3.4% for Q2FY20 (revised
higher from 3.1% in August policy), 3.5%-3.7% in H2FY20 and 3.6% in Q1FY21. FY20 GDP projection was lowered to 6.1%
(from 6.9% in August).
The Finance Minister presented the Union Budget for FY19-20 with a clear focus on providing a growth impetus to the
economy through support for the agriculture sector and providing higher discretionary income in the hands of the middle class.
Nominal GDP growth was projected at 12.3% for FY19 and 11.5% for FY20. In order to provide for the growth impetus, the
FM has allowed for a slip in fiscal deficit target for FY19 and FY20 taking it to 3.4% of GDP in both years (compared to the
roadmap of 3.3% for FY19 and 3.0% for FY20 set in the previous budget). Going forward, the FM reiterated her intention to
continue on fiscal consolidation with a Fiscal Deficit target of 3% for FY21 and FY22.
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UTI Indian Balanced Fund
Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Market Commentary (continued)
The Finance minister, to promote growth and investment, has proposed to reduce the effective income tax rates of domestic
companies, which was ~35%, to 25.17% subject to a condition of companies forfeiting other incentives or exemptions. This
reduction in income tax rates would effectively increase the earnings of companies as the benefit of reduced tax would flow
down to EPS and eventually improve the Return on Equity. Indian corporate tax rate is now in line with global standards and
removes the disadvantage faced by the Indian corporate sector. This also provides the ability for the corporate sector to pass on
these benefits to consumers by way of discounts / promotions which can provide an impetus to an otherwise sluggish demand
scenario. In addition, there may also be a revival in capital investment by the private sector since the post-tax returns for a
number of projects will improve. There could be benefits of making India seem more competitive internationally as an
investment destination and attract higher FDI flows.
Fund Commentary
Fixed Income
Last year was an action-packed year for local fixed income market with RBI’s monetary policy committee cutting interest rate
cumulatively by 135 bps and supporting the system with ample liquidity in the second half of the year, the Central Bank shift
from Open market operations for liquidity management to Operation Twist to reduce term premiums, the unexpected pause
from MPC in policy rate cuts at the end of the year. In the midst of all this, the benchmark 10 year treasury yield went down by
140bps from a level of 7.85% at the start of November 2018 to 6.45% as of end of October 2019. Globally, central banks
easing stance continued with many countries turning to fiscal stimulus to revive their economy.
Equity
The portfolio’s outperformance over the benchmark in the one year period was driven primarily by overweight position in
Financial Services, Consumer Goods, Healthcare services and Industrial Manufacturing and underweight position in Metals.
On the other hand, underweight position in Energy contributed negatively to the performance. In terms of individual stocks,
the key positive contributors were Bajaj Finance, Info Edge India, Berger Paints, Kotak Mahindra Bank and Dr. Lal Pathlabs.
Underweight positions in Indiabulls Housing Finance and Mahindra & Mahindra also contributed positively. The key
underperforming stocks during the period were RBL Bank, eClerx Services ltd and IndusInd Bank. Underweight positions in
Bharat Petroleum Corporation ltd, Reliance Industries and Hindustan Unilever also impacted negatively. Refer to the annexure
for detailed performance attribution.
Outlook
Fixed Income
Going forward, key domestic events that the local bond market would watch out for in 2020 would be the upcoming Union
Budget for further cues on the path of the fiscal stance, RBI rate action, developments in local credit markets and growthinflation dynamics. On global front key events to watch out for in 2020 would be geo-political situation, movement in currency
as well as crude oil prices and progress in the US-China trade talks.
We believe in the current year, fiscal stimulus will take the centre stage and monetary stimulus will play the supporting role.
Last year, monetary stimulus has done the heavy lifting with 135 bps rate cut and ample system liquidity, this year we expect
central bank to be more opportunistic in its approach with continued focus on growth.
Equity
While the frontline indices continue to make new all-time highs, there is a gradual revival in momentum within the mid and
small cap space as well. Several steps being taken by the government, the most recent one being the announcement of INR 102
trillion National Infrastructure Pipeline, and some respite in the US-China trade conflict has given rise to expectations that
there could be a more broad-based rally in the market. Segments of the economy that had been subdued so far, primarily
infrastructure and export-oriented sectors, may start to see some pick-up in activity. This shall gradually also reflect in
improvement in consumer sentiment. However, the upcoming budget for FY20-21 will be keenly awaited. We continue to
remain positive on India’s long-term growth potential.
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
Directors’ Report
The Board of Directors (the “Directors”) of the Company present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 October 2019. The Company was incorporated in Ireland on 27 March 2014 as a
public limited company under the Irish Companies Act 2014 (as amended).
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with Irish law.
Irish law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law , the Directors have prepared
the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ( “IFRS”) as adopted by the European
Union.
Under Irish law, the Directors shall not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
Company's assets, liabilities and financial position as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for the
financial year.
In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:





select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and ensure that they contain the additional
information required by the Companies Act 2014 (as amended); and
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to:




correctly record and explain the transactions of the Company;
enable, at any time, the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company to be determined with reasonable
accuracy; and
enable the Directors to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2014 (as amended) and enable
those financial statements to be audited.

In this regard, Citibank Europe Plc has been appointed for the purpose of maintaining adequate accounting records.
Accordingly, the accounting records are kept at the following address: Citibank Europe Plc, I North Wall Quay, and Dublin 1,
Ireland (the “Administrator”).
The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company. In this regard, they have entrusted the assets of the Company
to the Citi Depositary Services Ireland (the “Depositary”) who has been appointed as Depositary to the Company pursuant to the terms of
a Depositary Agreement. The Directors have a general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.
Directors’ Compliance Statement
The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for securing compliance by UTI Goldfinch Funds Plc (hereinafter called the
“Company”) with its Relevant Obligations as defined with the Companies Act 2014 (as amended) (hereinafter called the “Relevant
Obligations”).
The Directors confirm that they have drawn up and adopted a compliance policy statement setting out the Company’s policies that, in the
Directors’ opinion, are appropriate to the Company in respect of its compliance with its Relevant Obligations.
The Directors further confirm the Company has put into place appropriate arrangements or structures that are, in the Directors’ opinion,
designed to secure material compliance with its Relevant Obligations including reliance on the advice of persons employed by the
Company and external legal and tax advisers as considered appropriate from time to time and that they have reviewed the effectiveness
of these arrangements or structures during the financial year to which this Report relates.
Audit Committee
During the financial year ended 31 October 2019 or 31 October 2018, the Company did not have an audit committee in place. The Board
considered setting up an audit committee as outlined in Section 167 of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended). The Board made the
decision not to establish an audit committee as this was deemed most appropriate to the Company's structure as a UCITS fund and the
nature, scale and complexity of the Company’s operations at this time.
Relevant audit Information
As far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware of and the
Directors have taken all the steps that should have been taken as Directors in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
Directors’ Report (continued)
Principal activities
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund
The investment objective and investment policy of the Fund is summarised in the “Background to the Company” on page 2. The
Investment Manager shall predominantly follow a bottom-up approach with emphasis on building exposure around strong blue chip
companies that have a high earnings growth potential on account of the size of the future business opportunity. The Fund shall have a
higher weightage into industries that exhibit stable and secular growth prospects, ability to generate high operating cash flows and
preferably free cash flows as well. The Fund shall be a diversified fund and shall not have any sector or industry focus, however it is
expected that the Fund will invest across many of the following sectors: Banking & Financial Services, Information Technology,
Consumer Goods, Healthcare, Automobile, Industrials, Cement, Energy and Telecom services. The Fund will not follow a benchmark
and will be actively managed.
UTI India Balanced Fund
The investment objective and investment policy of the Fund is summarised in the “Background to the Company” on page 2. The
Investment Manager shall in the case of equities predominantly follow a bottom-up approach with emphasis on building exposure
around strong blue chip companies that have a high earnings growth potential on account of the size of the future business opportunity.
The Fund shall have a higher weightage into industries that exhibit the following factors; stable and secular growth prospects, ability to
generate high operating cash flows and preferably free cash flows as well, minimum volatility in margins and the ability to maintain
growth rates despite slow-down in the sector. The Fund shall be a diversified fund and shall not have any sector or industry focus,
however it is expected that the Fund will invest across many of the following sectors: Banking & Financial Services, Information
Technology, Consumer Goods, Healthcare, Automobile, Industrials, Cement, Energy and Telecom services. The Fund will not follow a
benchmark and will be actively managed.
Review of business and future developments
The Directors do not anticipate any changes in the structure of the Company or investment objectives of the Funds in the immediate
future.
Corporate Governance Code
A corporate governance code (“the Code”) applicable to Irish domiciled collective investment schemes was issued by Irish Funds
(formerly known as the Irish Funds Industry Association) on 14 December 2011. The Board has put in place a framework for corporate
governance which it believes is suitable for an investment company and which enables the Company to comply voluntarily with the
main requirements of the Code, which sets out principles of good governance and a code of best practice. The Board voluntarily adopted
the Code with effect from date of incorporation, 27 March 2014.
The Board considers that throughout the financial year ended 31 October 2019 and 31 October 2018 the Company was in compliance
with the Irish Funds Code. https://files.irishfunds.ie/1432820468-corporate-governance-code-for-collective-investment-schemes-andmanagement-companies.pdf
Directors
The Directors of the Company who held office during the financial year ended 31 October 2019 and 31 October 2018 are detailed
below:
Praveen Jagwani (Indian)
Samantha McConnell (Irish)
Simon McDowell (Irish)
Directors’ and Secretary’s interests
Praveen Jagwani held 5,000 shares (31 October 2018: 5,000 shares) in UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund during the financial year ended
and as at 31 October 2019 with a value of $70,090 at 31 October 2019. The Directors are not aware of any other shareholding in the
Company by any Director, the Secretary or their respective families during the financial year ended and as at 31 October 2019.
Directors’ fees payable by the Company as at 31 October 2019 are US$2,133 (31 October 2018: US$10,499).
Other than as disclosed here and in Note 9 to the financial statements, there are no related party transactions or directors’ interests for
the financial year.
Dealings with Connected Persons
Regulation 41 of the UC1TS Regulations “Restrictions of transactions with connected persons” states that “A responsible person shall
ensure that any transaction between a UCITS and a connected person is conducted a) at arm’s length; and b) in the best interest of the
unit-holders of the UCITS”.
As required under UCITS Regulation 78.4, the Directors, as responsible persons are satisfied that there are in place arrangements,
evidenced by written procedures, to ensure that the obligations that are prescribed by Regulation 41(1) are applied to all transactions
with a connected party; and all transactions with connected parties that were entered into during the financial year to which the report
relates complied with the obligations that are prescribed by Regulation 41(1).
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
Directors' Report (continued)
Results for the financial year and dividends
The results for the financial year are set out m the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the financial year ended 31 October 2019.
The state ofaffau's of the Company is set out in the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 October 2019.
The Company has not declared a dividend during the financial year under review.
Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Company include but are not limited to market risks, credit risk (mcluding sovereign
issuers) and liquidity risk. A detailed analysis of the risks faced by the Funds are included in Note 10 to the financial statements.
Diversity Policy
Owing to the organisational structure and operating model of the Company, whereby most activities/operational tasks have been

delegated by the Company to the various service providers to the Company, and given that only employees of the Company are the
Directors, the Directors do not consider the adoption of a diversity policy necessary.

Significant events during the financial year
Significant events during the financial year are described in Note 16 of the financial statements.
Significant events since the financial year end
Significant events since the financial year end are disclosed in Note 17 of the financial statements.

Independent Auditors
The independent auditors, Ernst & Young have expressed their willingness to continue in office in accordance with Section 383(2) of
the Companies Act 2014 (as amended).

On behalf of the Board of Directors:

^lr^.6^^
Samantha McConnelI Simon McDowelI

24 February 2020 24 February 2020
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 October 2019
UTI India Dynamic UTI India
Equity Fund Balanced Fund Total
31 October 2019 31 October 2019 31 October 2019

Note USD USD USD
Assets
Financial assets at fau- value through profit or loss:

10

Transferable securities

Subscriptions receivable
Dividend receivable

283,542,763

15,115,342

298,658,105

907,486

252,600

1,160,086

88,526

1,917

90,443

165,174

165,174

292,025

10,543,675

2,850

2,850

Interest receivable

10,251,650

Cash and cash equivalents
Fund assets cash balances

5

Fund assets receivables

294,790,425

Total Assets

40

40

15,829,948

310,620,373

(102,850)

(102,850)

Liabilities
Creditors - amounts falling due within one financial year:

Fund assets payable
Outstanding fund assets cash balances

Distribution payable

4

Investment management fee payable

7

(40)

(40)

(41,024)

(41,024)

(737,777)
(206,005)

(46,620)

(784,397)

Redemptions payable

(53,226)

(259,231)

Payable for investment purchased

(624,144)

(6,995)
(98,311)

(631,139)

8

(4,245,655)
(18,737)

(1,767)

(4,343,966)
(20,504)

Audit fee payable

7

(30,352)

(9,225)

(39,577)

Directors' fee payable

7

(1,872)

(261)

(2,133)

Depositary fee payable

7

(38,211)

(47,325)

(2,238)

(9,114)
(2,477)

7

(78,431)

(34,791)

(4,715)
(113,222)

Transfer agency fee payable

(43,800)

(26,382)

(70,182)

Financial regulatory fee payable

(1,846)
(21,197)

(770)

(2,616)

(1,718)

(22,915)

(6,050,265)

(435,571)

(6,485,836)

288,740,160

15,394,377

304,134,537

Provision for Unrealised Capital Gains Tax
Miscellaneous fee payable

Professional fee payable
Administration fee payable

Corporate governance service provider fee payable

Total Liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders ofredeemable
participating shares)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

J

On behalf of the Board of Directors:

Samantha McConnelI

,\^<^ l^^^
Simon McDowell

24 February 2020 24 February 2020
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 October 2018
UTI India Dynamic
UTI India
Equity Fund Balanced Fund*
Total
31 October 2018 31 October 2018 31 October 2018
Note
USD
USD
USD
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Transferable securities
Subscriptions receivable
Receivable for investments sold
Dividend receivable
Interest receivable
Cash and cash equivalents

10

5

Total Assets

Liabilities
Creditors – amounts falling due within one financial year:
Investment management fee payable
Redemptions payable
Payable for investment purchased
Miscellaneous fee payable
Audit fee payable
Directors’ fee payable
Depositary fee payable
Professional fee payable
Administration fee payable
Transfer agency fee payable
Financial regulatory fee payable
Corporate governance service provider fee payable
Total Liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

7

7
7
7
7

3

141,042,613
452,226
543,744
174,022
6,476,519
148,689,124

11,143,495
4,401
217,494
297,974
11,663,364

152,186,108
452,226
543,744
178,423
217,494
6,774,493
160,352,488

(520,657)
(284,934)
(907,116)
(18,181)
(20,568)
(10,190)
(15,408)
(11,288)
(13,724)
(15,434)
(3,853)
(2,378)

(8,234)
(14,950)
(2,815)
(309)
(4,903)
(5,244)
(2,428)
(2,695)
(255)

(528,891)
(284,934)
(907,116)
(33,131)
(23,383)
(10,499)
(20,311)
(11,288)
(18,968)
(17,862)
(6,548)
(2,633)

(1,823,731)

(41,833)

(1,865,564)

146,865,393

11,621,531

158,486,924

* UTI India Balanced Fund was launched on 27 April 2018 with a commencement of operations date of 02 May 2018.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 31 October 2019
UTI India Dynamic
UTI India
Equity Fund
Balanced Fund
Total
Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Financial Year ended
31 October 2019
31 October 2019
31 October 2019
Note
USD
USD
USD
Income
Dividend income
Interest income

1,919,195
-

44,730
673,657

1,963,925
673,657

Net realised gains/(losses) on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

2,582,834

(118,478)

2,464,356

Net unrealised gains on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Other income

33,225,721
40,325

1,691,061
4,298

34,916,782
44,623

Net Investment income

37,768,075

2,295,268

40,063,343

(1,887,681)
(128,943)
(141,921)
(174,456)
(59,047)
(82,737)
(33,075)
(34,166)
(18,682)
(3,769)
(2,564,477)

(121,847)
(36,398)
(9,763)
(54,928)
(2,931)
(40,792)
(14,923)
(2,623)
(2,382)
(1,076)
(287,663)

(2,009,528)
(165,341)
(151,684)
(229,384)
(61,978)
(123,529)
(47,998)
(36,789)
(21,064)
(4,845)
(2,852,140)

35,203,598

2,007,605

37,211,203

-

(362,402)

(362,402)

35,203,598

1,645,203

36,848,801

(4,245,655)
(281,599)

(31,716)
(98,311)
(64,913)

(31,716)
(4,343,966)
(346,512)

30,676,344

1,450,263

32,126,607

Expenses
Investment management fee
Depositary fee
Professional fee
Administration fee
Miscellaneous fee
Transfer agency fee
Audit fee
Corporate governance service provider fee
Directors’ fee
Financial Regulatory fee
Total operating expenses

7
7
7

7
7

Operating profit
Finance costs
Interest expense
Income Distribution

4

Operating profit for the financial year before taxation
Taxation
Withholding Tax
Unrealised Capital Gains Tax Expenses
Capital Gains Tax - Realised

8

Net increase in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares resulting from
operations
All amounts arose from continuing operations.

There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive income.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 31 October 2018
UTI India Dynamic
UTI India
Equity Fund
Balanced Fund*
Total
Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Financial Year ended
31 October 2018
31 October 2018
31 October 2018
Note
USD
USD
USD
Income
Dividend income
Interest income

1,139,934
-

21,895
248,833

1,161,829
248,833

Net realised gains/(losses) on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

1,627,614

(262,427)

1,365,187

(16,357,536)
40,767
(13,549,221)

(1,173,872)
(1,165,571)

(17,531,408)
40,767
(14,714,792)

(1,398,741)
(107,534)
(169,111)
(130,028)
(150,964)
(87,049)
(25,000)
(27,382)
(17,623)
(4,000)
(2,117,432)

(46,724)
(16,735)
(699)
(15,497)
(44,084)
(9,904)
(4,815)
(1,403)
(2,941)
(5,119)
(147,921)

(1,445,465)
(124,269)
(169,810)
(145,525)
(195,048)
(96,953)
(29,815)
(28,785)
(20,564)
(9,119)
(2,265,353)

Operating loss

(15,666,653)

(1,313,492)

(16,980,145)

Finance costs
Interest expense

-

-

-

(15,666,653)

(1,313,492)

(16,980,145)

(19,909)

(4,835)
(10,142)

(4,835)
(30,051)

(15,686,562)

(1,328,469)

(17,015,031)

Net unrealised losses on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Other income
Net Investment loss
Expenses
Investment management fee
Depositary fee
Professional fee
Administration fee
Miscellaneous fee
Transfer agency fee
Audit fee
Corporate governance service provider fee
Directors’ fee
Financial Regulatory fee
Total operating expenses

7
7
7

7
7

Operating loss for the financial year before taxation
Taxation
Withholding Tax
Capital Gains Tax
Net decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares resulting from
operations

* UTI India Balanced Fund was launched on 27 April 2018 with a commencement of operations date of 02 May 2018.
All amounts arose from continuing operations.
There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive income.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES
For the financial year ended 31 October 2019
UTI India
UTI India
Dynamic Equity Fund
Balanced Fund
Total
Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Financial Year ended
31 October 2019
31 October 2019
31 October 2019
Note
USD
USD
USD
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the financial
year

146,865,393

11,621,531

158,486,924

Operating activities
Net increase in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares resulting from operations

30,676,344

1,450,263

32,126,607

198,235,245
(87,036,822)
111,198,423

18,028,748
(15,706,165)
2,322,583

216,263,993
(102,742,987)
113,521,006

288,740,160

15,394,377

304,134,537

Share transactions
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed
Net increase from share transactions

6
6

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES
For the financial year ended 31 October 2018
UTI India
UTI India
Dynamic Equity Fund
Balanced Fund*
Total
Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Financial Year ended
31 October 2018
31 October 2018
31 October 2018
Note
USD
USD
USD
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the financial
year

114,915,729

-

114,915,729

Operating activities
Net decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares resulting from operations

(15,686,562)

(1,328,469)

(17,015,031)

77,122,973
(29,486,747)
47,636,226

12,950,000
12,950,000

90,072,973
(29,486,747)
60,586,226

146,865,393

11,621,531

158,486,924

Share transactions
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed
Net increase from share transactions

6
6

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year

* UTI India Balanced Fund was launched on 27 April 2018 with a commencement of operations date of 02 May 2018.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended to 31 October 2019
UTI India Dynamic UTI India Balanced
Equity Fund
Fund
Total
Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Financial Year ended
31 October 2019
31 October 2019
31 October 2019
USD
USD
USD
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares resulting from operations

30,676,344

1,450,263

32,126,607

Adjustments for:
Movement in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(142,500,150)

(3,971,847)

(146,471,997)

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

(118,823,806)

(2,521,584)

(114,345,390)

629,240
4,305,463

51,914
340,512

681,154
4,645,975

(106,889,103)

(2,129,158)

(109,018,261)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed
Net cash provided by financing activities

197,779,985
(87,115,751)
110,664,234

17,776,148
(15,652,939)
2,123,209

215,556,133
(102,768,690)
112,787,443

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

3,775,131

(5,949)

3,769,182

6,476,519
10,251,650

297,974
292,025

6,774,493
10,543,675

2,004,691
(281,599)

725,977
47,214
(96,629)

725,977
2,051,905
(378,228)

Movement in receivables
Movement in payables
Net cash used in operating activities

Reconciliation of cash movement during the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the financial year
Supplementary information
Interest received
Dividend received
Taxes paid
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended to 31 October 2018
UTI India Dynamic UTI India Balanced
Equity Fund
Fund*
Total
Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Financial Year ended
31 October 2018
31 October 2018
31 October 2018
USD
USD
USD
Cash flows from operating activities
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares resulting from operations

(15,686,562)

(1,328,469)

(17,015,031)

Adjustments for:
Movement in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(31,073,712)

(11,143,495)

(42,217,207)

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

(46,760,274)

(12,471,964)

(59,232,238)

(649,949)
431,151

(221,895)
41,833

(871,844)
472,984

Net cash used in operating activities

(46,979,072)

(12,652,026)

(59,631,098)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed
Net cash provided by financing activities

78,164,295
(29,406,816)
48,757,479

12,950,000
12,950,000

91,114,295
(29,406,816)
61,707,479

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

1,778,407

297,974

2,076,381

Reconciliation of cash movement during the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the financial year

4,698,112
6,476,519

297,974

4,698,112
6,774,493

1,033,729
(19,909)

31,339
17,494
(14,977)

31,339
1,051,223
(34,886)

Movement in receivables
Movement in payables

Supplementary information
Interest received
Dividend received
Taxes paid

* UTI India Balanced Fund was launched on 27 April 2018 with a commencement of operations date of 02 May 2018.
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
UTI INDIA DYNAMIC EQUITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2019
Number
of Shares

168,954
367,159
515,620
619,804
99,350
386,285
841,100
901,743
55,155
1,462,188
846,059
623,100
255,075
282,954
198,037
15,300
287,362
320,266
451,479
390,200
1,045,208
890,906
418,750
125,872
565,200
300,472
923,808
284,300
451,103
225,600
576,447
486,860
427,827
704,500
60,890
126,396
241,609
3,157,911
24,425
12,290
229,876
192,374
535,000
55,652
159,504
28,105
520,870
132,155

Investment in transferable securities
Equities 98.20% (2018: 96.04%)
India 98.20% (2018: 96.04%)
Ajanta Pharma
Amara Raja Batteries
Astral Poly Technik
AU Small Finance Bank
Avenue Supermarts
Bajaj Finance
Berger Paints India
Cadila Healthcare
Cera Sanitaryware
City Union Bank
Crompton Greaves Consumer Electricals
Dabur India
Divi's Laboratories
Dr Lal PathLabs
eClerx Services
Eicher Motors
Endurance Technologies
Eris Lifesciences
Grindwell Norton
Havells India
HDFC Bank
Hindustan Zinc
Housing Development Finance Corp
Igarashi Motors India
IndusInd Bank
Info Edge India
Infosys
Ipca Laboratories
ITC
Jubilant Foodworks
Kotak Mahindra Bank
LA Opala RG
Larsen & Toubro Infotech
Marico
Maruti Suzuki India
Metropolis Healthcare
Mindtree
Motherson Sumi Systems
Nestle India
Page Industries
PI Industries
Pidilite Industries
RBL Bank
Schaeffler India
Sheela Foam
Shree Cement
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries
Symphony
23

Fair Value
USD

% of
Net Assets

2,496,542
3,538,189
8,115,196
5,968,038
2,793,417
21,942,870
6,154,649
3,200,032
2,099,602
4,372,524
3,037,018
4,052,561
6,287,416
6,127,869
1,253,943
4,875,594
4,418,584
1,955,181
3,876,530
3,797,637
18,124,283
2,667,932
12,616,755
424,146
10,459,389
10,798,468
8,944,109
3,928,179
1,641,542
5,074,385
12,736,333
1,131,227
10,332,701
3,634,392
6,489,741
2,567,944
2,427,092
5,487,507
5,152,091
4,506,927
4,611,974
3,812,111
2,334,548
3,381,788
2,793,068
7,925,028
3,192,326
2,411,516

0.86
1.23
2.81
2.07
0.97
7.60
2.13
1.11
0.73
1.51
1.05
1.40
2.18
2.12
0.43
1.69
1.53
0.68
1.34
1.32
6.28
0.92
4.37
0.15
3.61
3.74
3.10
1.36
0.57
1.76
4.41
0.39
3.58
1.26
2.25
0.89
0.84
1.90
1.78
1.56
1.60
1.32
0.81
1.17
0.97
2.74
1.11
0.84

UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
UTI INDIA DYNAMIC EQUITY FUND (CONTINUED)
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2019 (CONTINUED)
Number of
Shares

Fair Value
USD

% of
Net Assets

2,517,815
11,756,117
4,999,427
4,298,510
283,542,763

0.87
4.07
1.73
1.49
98.20

Total Investments in transferable securities

283,542,763

98.20

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Net Liabilities
Total net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares

10,251,650
(5,054,253)
288,740,160

3.55
(1.75)
100.00

539,520
367,001
266,252
172,244

Investment in transferable securities (continued)
Equities 98.20% (2018: 96.04%) (continued)
India 98.20% (2018: 96.04%) (continued)
Syngene International
Tata Consultancy Services
Titan Co
Torrent Pharmaceuticals

% of Total
Assets
96.18
3.48
0.34
100.00

Analysis of total assets
Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other current assets
Total
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
UTI INDIA BALANCED FUND
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2019 (continued)
Number
of Shares

3,648
8,040
11,118
13,270
2,180
8,571
18,075
19,750
1,180
31,700
18,475
13,575
5,525
7,050
4,294
333
6,335
7,125
9,737
8,510
22,840
19,180
9,110
2,822
12,310
6,641
20,115
6,175
8,850
5,014
12,570
10,750
9,265
15,300
1,323
2,940
5,234
65,300
534
275
5,000
4,225
11,870
1,225
3,477
611
11,360
2,875

Investment in transferable securities
Equities 40.33% (2018: 30.89%)
India 40.33% (2018: 30.89%)
Ajanta Pharma
Amara Raja Batteries
Astral Poly Technik
AU Small Finance Bank
Avenue Supermarts
Bajaj Finance
Berger Paints India
Cadila Healthcare
Cera Sanitaryware
City Union Bank
Crompton Greaves Consumer Electricals
Dabur India
Divi's Laboratories
Dr Lal PathLabs
eClerx Services
Eicher Motors
Endurance Technologies
Eris Lifesciences
Grindwell Norton
Havells India
HDFC Bank
Hindustan Zinc
Housing Development Finance Corp
Igarashi Motors India
IndusInd Bank
Info Edge India
Infosys
Ipca Laboratories
ITC
Jubilant Foodworks
Kotak Mahindra Bank
LA Opala RG
Larsen & Toubro Infotech
Marico
Maruti Suzuki India
Metropolis Healthcare
Mindtree
Motherson Sumi Systems
Nestle India
Page Industries
PI Industries
Pidilite Industries
RBL Bank
Schaeffler India
Sheela Foam
Shree Cement
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries
Symphony
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Fair Value
USD

% of
Net Assets

53,905
77,479
174,983
127,776
61,295
486,875
132,262
70,087
44,919
94,796
66,318
88,290
136,187
152,680
27,189
106,116
97,409
43,497
83,605
82,824
396,054
57,437
274,480
9,509
227,804
238,667
194,749
85,320
32,205
112,779
277,728
24,978
223,764
78,930
141,007
59,731
52,578
113,472
112,639
100,847
100,314
83,723
51,796
74,439
60,886
172,289
69,624
52,462

0.35
0.50
1.14
0.83
0.40
3.17
0.86
0.46
0.29
0.62
0.43
0.57
0.88
0.99
0.18
0.69
0.63
0.28
0.54
0.54
2.58
0.37
1.78
0.06
1.48
1.55
1.27
0.55
0.21
0.73
1.81
0.16
1.45
0.51
0.92
0.39
0.34
0.74
0.73
0.66
0.65
0.54
0.34
0.48
0.40
1.12
0.45
0.34

UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
UTI INDIA BALANCED FUND (CONTINUED)
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2019 (continued)
Number
of Shares

11,760
7,984
6,015
3,850

60,000,000
50,000,000
50,000,000
200,000,000
60,000,000
50,000,000
50,000,000
50,000,000

482,205

Coupon
Rate

Maturity
Date

Investment in transferable securities (continued)
Equities 40.33% (2018: 30.89%) (continued)
India 40.33% (2018: 30.89%) (continued)
Syngene International
Tata Consultancy Services
Titan Co
Torrent Pharmaceuticals

Government Bonds 54.73% (2018: 65.00%)
India 54.73% (2018: 65.00%)
India Government Bond
India Government Bond
India Government Bond
India Government Bond
State of Gujarat India
State of Gujarat India
State of Maharashtra India
State of Tamil Nadu India

7.26
8.79
8.15
7.37
8.69
9.12
8.76
9.19

Investment Funds 3.13% (2018: 0.00%)
Ireland 3.13% (2018: 0.00%)
Goldman Sachs plc - US$ Treasury Liquid Reserves Fund

Total Investments in transferable securities
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Net Liabilities
Total net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares

14/01/2029
08/11/2021
11/06/2022
16/04/2023
08/02/2022
23/05/2022
22/02/2022
09/11/2021

Fair Value
USD

% of
Net Assets

54,881
255,751
112,944
96,080

0.36
1.66
0.73
0.62

6,208,359

40.33

881,176
744,837
743,088
2,934,707
887,575
748,684
741,250
743,461

5.72
4.84
4.83
19.06
5.77
4.86
4.82
4.83

8,424,778

54.73

482,205
482,205

3.13
3.13

15,115,342

98.19

292,025
(12,990)

1.90
(0.09)

15,394,377

100.00
% of Total
Assets
95.49
1.84
2.67

Analysis of total assets
Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other current assets
Total

100.00
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 October 2019 have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union (“EU”), the European Communities
(Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended) the Central Bank (Supervision and
Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 and
Irish Statute comprising the Companies Act 2014 (as amended).
All references to net assets throughout this document refer to net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
unless otherwise stated.
Going concern
The Company’s management has made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the
Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as going concern. Therefore, the financial
statements are prepared on the going concern basis.
Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in US Dollars (“US$”) which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Items
included in the financial statements of the Company are measured in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates (the “functional currency”) and its capital raising currency. The primary objective of the Company is to generate
returns in US$. The liquidity of the Company is managed on a day to day basis in US$ in order to handle the issue, acquisition and
resale of the Company’s Redeemable Participating Shares.
Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that effect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
financial year in which the estimates are revised and in any future year affected.
Standards and interpretations to existing standards effective 1 November 2018
IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” (issued 12 November 2009, revised in October 2010, November 2013 and July 2014). IFRS 9 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and has been adopted by the Company. This is the first set of
financial statements for the Company prepared under IFRS 9.
IFRS 9 replaces most of the guidance of IAS 39, “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement” that relates to classification
and measurement of financial instruments. The completed IFRS 9 (as revised in 2014) contains the requirements for a) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, b) impairment methodology and c) general hedge
accounting.
IFRS 9 establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income and fair value through profit or loss. The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual
cash-flow characteristics of the financial asset. For financial liabilities, there were no changes to classification and measurement
except for the recognition of changes in the entity’s own credit risk in other comprehensive income, for liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss.
The Company’s investment portfolio was previously designated as fair value through profit or loss. On adoption of IFRS 9 the
investment portfolio is mandatorily classified as fair value through profit or loss. The investment objective of the Company is to
provide investors with a total return, taking into account both capital and income returns and to achieve long-term capital appreciation
and its portfolio is managed on a fair value basis. The Company therefore applies the business model allowed by IFRS 9 B4.1.6 which
requires its portfolio to be classified at fair value through profit or loss.
There are no other new standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that are effective for annual periods beginning on 1
November 2018 that have a material effect on the financial statements of the Company.
2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Company for the financial year ended 31 October 2019 are set out below:
(a) Foreign currency translation
Transactions in currencies other than US$ if applicable, are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of financial year end
exchange rates of monetary items and non-monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the financial year in which they arise. Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) on nonmonetary and monetary financial assets and liabilities are included in the line item net foreign currency gain/(loss) in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
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UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Revenue recognition
Dividend income is recognised when a Company’s right to receive the payment has been established, normally being the exdividend date. Dividend income is recognised gross of withholding tax, if any.
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest income rate calculated at acquisition on origination
date. Interest is accrued on a daily basis.
(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(i) Classification
The Company classifies its equity securities into the categories below in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement (IFRS 9). A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if: (a) Its contractual terms do not give
rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding or
(b) It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows, or to both collect contractual
cash flows and sell or (c) At initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FVPL when doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.
Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category are included in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Financial assets and liabilities previously classified at fair value through profit or loss: The Company holds equity securities of USD
289,751,122 (31 October 2018: USD 144,632,611) which had previously been classified at fair value through profit or loss. The
Company holds debt securities of USD 8,424,778 (31 October 2018: USD 7,553,497) which had previously been designated at fair
value through profit or loss. On adoption of IFRS 9, these securities are mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss.

(ii) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement
Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, the date on which the Company commits to purchase or
sell the investment. Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value.
Transaction costs are expensed as incurred in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income within net change in unrealised gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Company has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership and a realised gain or loss is recognised. Realised gains and losses are
presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as net realised gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

(iii) Fair value estimation
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between market
participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.
The Company uses last traded market prices as its valuation inputs for listed securities, which is consistent with the inputs used for
the purpose of determining dealing prices. In circumstances where the last traded price is not within the bid-ask spread, the
Investment Manager will determine the point within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value. When market
quotations are not available or are unrepresentative, estimation methods and valuation models may be used to calculate fair value.
There were no instances in which the Investment Manager did not use the last traded market price as its valuation input during the
financial year, or at financial year end.

(iv) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of Financial Position when, and
only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis for gains and losses from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
and foreign exchange gains and losses.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
(v) Net gains or losses from financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss
Realised gains or losses on disposal of investments held for trading or classified at fair value through profit or loss and
unrealised gains or losses on valuation of investments held for trading or classified at fair value through profit or loss at the
financial year end are calculated using the first in, first out method (“FIFO”) and included in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
(d) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes deposits held at call with banks and other short-term, highly liquid investments in an active
market with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition, that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash, subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments other
than cash collateral provided in respect of derivative and security borrowing transactions.
(e) Umbrella cash accounts
Cash account arrangements have been put in place in respect of the Fund as a consequence of the introduction of requirements
relating to the subscription and redemption collection accounts pursuant to the Central Bank of Ireland (Supervision and
Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48 (i)) Investor Money Regulations 2015 for Fund Service Providers (the ‘Investor Money
Regulations’). These cash accounts, held with a third party banking entity for collection of subscriptions, payment of redemptions
and distributions for the Fund are deemed assets of the Fund. As of the financial year ended 31 October 2019, the balance on these
cash accounts is US$2,850 (31 October 2018: US $3).
(f) Redeemable participating shares
Redeemable Participating Shares are redeemable at the Shareholder’s option and are classified as financial liabilities in accordance
with IAS 32, “Puttable financial instruments and obligations arising on liquidation”. IAS 32 classifies as equity (a) certain puttable
financial instruments and (b) certain financial instruments that impose on the entity an obligation to deliver to another party a pro
rata share of the net assets of the entity only on liquidation.
As the redeemable participating shares of the Company did not meet the specific criteria (as la id out in the amendment to IAS
32) to be classified as equity instruments these units have been classified as financial liabilities in these financial state ments.
The redeemable shares can be repurchased by the Company on a Dealing Day at the Net Asset Value per Share calculated as at the
Valuation Point to that Dealing Day. The Redeemable Participating Share is carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the
statement of financial position date if a Shareholder exercised his or her right to have the Company repurchase his or her share.
In accordance with the Prospectus, the Fund is contractually obliged to redeem shares at dealing prices and the liability to
redeemable participating shareholders has been adjusted to reflect this. Monetary value share transactions during the financial year
are recognised in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares of the

Fund.
(g) Expenses
Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accruals basis.
(h) Transaction costs
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of
the financial instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Transaction costs on purchases and sales of equities are included in net gain/(loss) on investment activities in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income for each Fund, these include identifiable brokerage charges, commissions, transaction related taxes and other
market charges.
(i)

New standards and amendments to existing standards which are not yet effective

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective for annual periods starting on/after 1 January 2019) – Impact is being
assessed but it is not yet known yet.
IFRS 16, Leases (effective for annual periods starting on/after 1 January 2019).
IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts (effective for annual periods starting on/after 1 January 2021).
The Company does not expect the new standards to impact the financial instruments. There are no other standards, interpretations or
amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a significant impact on the Company.
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3. NET ASSET VALUE
NET ASSET VALUE FOR SHAREHOLDER DEALING/PROSPECTUS*
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund
USD Institutional Accumulating
Net Asset Value USD
Number of Shares in Issue
Net Asset Value per Share
USD Retail Accumulating
Net Asset Value USD
Number of Shares in Issue
Net Asset Value per Share
EUR Institutional Accumulating
Net Asset Value EUR
Number of Shares in Issue
Net Asset Value per Share
EUR Retail Accumulating
Net Asset Value EUR
Number of Shares in Issue
Net Asset Value per Share
GBP RDR Accumulating
Net Asset Value GBP
Number of Shares in Issue
Net Asset Value per Share
USD RDR Accumulating
Net Asset Value USD
Number of Shares in Issue
Net Asset Value per Share
USD RDR II Distributing^
Net Asset Value USD
Number of Shares in Issue
Net Asset Value per Share

31 October 2019

31 October 2018

31 October 2017

153,032,588
10,916,977
14.02

100,397,602
8,626,074
11.64

67,493,711
5,326,475
12.67

28,198,786
2,090,107
13.49

28,034,347
2,472,934
11.33

30,747,048
2,476,167
12.42

48,500,566
3,385,420
14.33

11,753,940
1,003,290
11.72

10,256,981
826,934
12.40

5,146,555
386,619
13.31

2,968,974
270,298
10.98

3,617,238
308,338
11.73

63,810
5,229
12.20

146,984
14,266
10.30

56,550
5,229
10.81

3,642,104
304,879
11.95

1,350,021
135,775
9.94

451,311
41,786
10.80

48,218,352
4,531,752
10.64

-

-

^ Share Class launched on 10 October 2019
*Refer to reconciliation of net asset value for dealing to net asset value for financial statement purposes on page 32 and 33.

.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
3. NET ASSET VALUE (CONTINUED)
NET ASSET VALUE FOR SHAREHOLDER DEALING/PROSPECTUS*
UTI India Balanced Fund
31 October 2019

31 October 2018

31 October 2017

2,609,177
259,609
10.05

11,212,738
1,254,930
8.94

-

366
35
10.40

408,793
45,000
9.08

-

656,553
60,830
10.79

-

-

863,396
82,219
10.50

-

-

1,260,721
125,000
10.09

-

-

10,102,475
990,460
10.20

-

-

USD Institutional Distributing
Net Asset Value USD
Number of Shares in Issue
Net Asset Value per Share
USD Retail Distributing**
Net Asset Value USD
Number of Shares in Issue
Net Asset Value per Share
Class C USD Accumulating*
Net Asset Value USD
Number of Shares in Issue
Net Asset Value per Share
Class C USD Distributing*
Net Asset Value USD
Number of Shares in Issue
Net Asset Value per Share
USD Retail Accumulating***
Net Asset Value USD
Number of Shares in Issue
Net Asset Value per Share
USD Institutional Accumulating^^^
Net Asset Value USD
Number of Shares in Issue
Net Asset Value per Share

* Share Class launched on 28 November 2018.
** Share Class fully redeemed on 26 March 2019 and re launched on 11 June 2019.
*** Share Class launched on 18 July 2019
^^^ Share Class launched on 30 July 2019.
*Refer to reconciliation of net asset value for dealing to net asset value for financial statement purposes on page 32 and 33
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL NET ASSET VALUE

Total NAV For Financial Statements
Add back Long Term Capital Gains Tax
accrual adjustment
Total NAV for Shareholder
dealing/prospectus

UTI India Dynamic
Equity Fund

UTI India
Balanced Fund

Total

288,740,160

15,394,377

304,134,537

4,245,655

98,311

4,343,966

292,985,815

15,492,688

308,478,503
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3. NET ASSET VALUE (CONTINUED)
RECONCILIATION OF NET VALUE
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund
A reconciliation of Net Asset Value per these Financial Statements to the last dealing Net Asset Value as at 31 October 2019 is
presented below.

US D Institutional Accumulating
Net Asset Value USD
Net Asset Value per Share
US D Retail Accumulating
Net Asset Value USD
Net Asset Value per Share
EUR Institutional Accumulating
Net Asset Value EUR
Net Asset Value per Share
EUR Retail Accumulating
Net Asset Value EUR
Net Asset Value per Share
GBP RDR Accumulating
Net Asset Value GBP
Net Asset Value per Share
US D RDR Accumulating
Net Asset Value USD
Net Asset Value per Share
US D RDR II Distributing
Net Asset Value USD
Net Asset Value per Share

Total Net Asset Value
for financial
statement purposes

Long -Term CGT
accrual adjustment

Total Net Asset Value
for shareholder
dealing/prospectus

150,814,994
13.81

2,217,594
0.21

153,032,588
14.02

27,790,158
13.30

408,628
0.19

28,198,786
13.49

47,797,745
14.12

702,821
0.21

48,500,566
14.33

5,071,976
13.12

74,579
0.19

5,146,555
13.31

62,886
12.03

924
0.17

63,810
12.20

3,589,326
11.77

52,778
0.18

3,642,104
11.95

47,519,620
10.49

698,732
0.15

48,218,352
10.64

A reconciliation of Net Asset Value per these Financial Statements to the last dealing Net Asset Value as at 31 October 2018 is
presented below.
Total Net Asset Value
Total Net Asset Value
for financial
Long -Term CGT
for shareholder
statement purposes
accrual adjustment
dealing/prospectus
US D Institutional Accumulating
Net Asset Value USD
Net Asset Value per Share
US D Retail Accumulating
Net Asset Value USD
Net Asset Value per Share
EUR Institutional Accumulating
Net Asset Value EUR
Net Asset Value per Share
EUR Retail Accumulating
Net Asset Value EUR
Net Asset Value per Share
GBP RDR Accumulating
Net Asset Value GBP
Net Asset Value per Share
US D RDR Accumulating
Net Asset Value USD
Net Asset Value per Share

100,397,602
11.64

-

100,397,602
11.64

28,034,347
11.33

-

28,034,347
11.33

11,753,940
11.72

-

11,753,940
11.72

2,968,974
10.98

-

2,968,974.00
10.98

146,984
10.30

-

146,984
10.30

1,350,021
9.94

-

1,350,021
9.94
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3. NET ASSET VALUE (CONTINUED)
RECONCILIATION OF NET VALUE
UTI India Balanced Fund
A reconciliation of Net Asset Value per these Financial Statements to the last dealing Net Asset Value as at 31 October 2019 is
presented below.

US D Institutional Distributing
Net Asset Value USD
Net Asset Value per Share
US D Retail Distributing
Net Asset Value USD
Net Asset Value per Share
Class C US D Accumulating
Net Asset Value USD
Net Asset Value per Share
Class C US D Distributing
Net Asset Value USD
Net Asset Value per Share
US D Institutional Accumulating
Net Asset Value USD
Net Asset Value per Share
US D Retail Accumulating
Net Asset Value USD
Net Asset Value per Share

Total Net Asset Value
for financial
statement purposes

Long -Term CGT
accrual adjustment

2,592,620
9.99

16,557
0.06

364
10.34

2
0.06

652,387
10.72

4,166
0.07

857,917
10.43

5,479
0.07

10,038,368
10.14

64,107
0.06

1,252,721
10.02

8,000
0.07

Total Net Asset Value
for shareholder
dealing/prospectus
2,609,177
10.05
366
10.40
656,553
10.79
863,396
10.50
10,102,475
10.20
1,260,721
10.09

A reconciliation of Net Asset Value per these Financial Statements to the last dealing Net Asset Value as at 31 October 2018 is
presented below.

US D Institutional Distributing
Net Asset Value USD
Net Asset Value per Share
US D Retail Distributing
Net Asset Value USD
Net Asset Value per Share

Total Net Asset Value
for financial
statement purposes

Long -Term CGT
accrual adjustment

11,212,738
8.94

-

408,793
9.08

-

Total Net Asset Value
for shareholder
dealing/prospectus
11,212,738
8.94
408,793
9.08

The difference arises as a result of the accrual for incremental long-term Indian capital gains tax payable at the year end. Refer to Note
8 for further detail.
4. DISTRIBUTIONS
The Directors are entitled to declare and pay dividends for shares in the Company. The Directors intend to declare and pay dividends
on a quarterly basis equal to; net income and realised and unrealised gains, net of realised and unrealised losses. Any dividend will be
declared on the last Business Day in January, April, July and in October in each financial period or on such other date as may be
determined by the Directors, or such other frequency as the Directors consider appropriate. The Company may commence declaring
and the payment of dividends for the relevant Class twelve months following the date of the closing of the Initial Offer Period for that
Class. The Directors may also determine if and to what extent dividends paid include realised capital gains and/or are paid out of
capital attributable to the relevant Class. Dividends declared will be paid in cash and payment will be made to the relevant
Shareholders pre-designated bank accounts, net of bank charges. Distributions to the shareholders are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as finance costs.
The Company declared a distribution of US$362,402 from the UTI India Balanced Fund (31 October 2018: US$ Nil) during the
financial year ended 31 October 2019.
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5. CASH AT BANK
Cash at bank comprises current deposits with banks. The counterparty for cash at bank including overnight deposits as at 31 October
2019 and 31 October 2018 was Citi Depositary Services Ireland DAC. The credit rating of Citi Depositary Services Ireland DAC was
A+ at 31 October 2019 (31 October 2018: A+).
In March 2015, the Central Bank introduced Investor Money Regulations (“IMR”). These regulations, which are effective 1 July 2016,
detail material changes to the current rules in relation to investor money, and are designed to increase transparency and enhance
investor protection. In response to these regulations, cash accounts held with a third party banking entity for collection of
subscriptions, payment of redemptions and dividends for the Company were redesignated, and are now deemed assets of the Company.
As of the financial year ended 31 October 2019, the balance on these cash accounts is US$2,850 (31 October 2018: US $3).
6.

SUBSCRIBER AND REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

The authorised share capital of the Company is 300,000 redeemable non-participating shares of no par value and 500,000,000,000
participating shares of no par value. Non-participating shares do not entitle the holders thereof to any dividend and on a winding up
entitle the holders thereof to receive the amount paid up thereon but do not otherwise entitle them to participate in the assets of the
Company. The Directors have the power to allot shares up to the authorised share capital of the Company.
There are two issued Founder Shares in the Company. The Founder Shares each have full and equal voting rights. In addition, the
Founder Shares have exclusive voting rights in relation to the appointment of Directors, the alteration of the Company’s share
capital, the winding up of the Company, and amendments to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, except
insofar as the same involves a variation of the class rights or a change to the investment objectives, policies or restrictions of the
Company. The Founder Shares are not redeemable.
The Founder Shares are held by UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited and Dillon Eustace.
The issued share capital of the Fund in shares is as follows:
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund
For the financial year ended 31 October 2019
Shares issued

At 31 October 2018
8,626,074
2,472,934
1,003,290
270,298
14,266
135,775

USD Institutional Accumulating
USD Retail Accumulating
EUR Institutional Accumulating
EUR Retail Accumulating
GBP RDR Accumulating
USD RDR Accumulating
USD RDR II Distributing^
Total

12,522,637

4,560,423
391,359
2,698,145
161,635
3,872,192
4,531,752
16,215,506

Shares redeemed At 31 October 2019
(2,269,520)
(774,186)
(316,015)
(45,314)
(9,037)
(3,703,088)
(7,117,160)

10,916,977
2,090,107
3,385,420
386,619
5,229
304,879
4,531,752
21,620,983

^ Share Class launched on 10 October 2019.
For the financial year ended 31 October 2018

USD Institutional Accumulating
USD Retail Accumulating
EUR Institutional Accumulating
EUR Retail Accumulating
GBP RDR Accumulating
USD RDR Accumulating
Total

At 31 October 2017

Shares issued

5,326,475
2,476,167
826,934
308,338
5,229
41,786
8,984,929

4,082,387
814,241
615,246
63,342
9,037
123,350
5,707,603
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Shares redeemed At 31 October 2018
(782,788)
(817,474)
(814,174)
(438,890)
(101,382)
(29,361)
(2,169,895)

8,626,074
2,472,934
1,003,290
270,298
14,266
135,775
12,522,637

UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
6.

SUBSCRIBER AND REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES (CONTINUED)

UTI India Balanced Fund(1)
For the financial year ended 31 October 2019
Shares issued

At 31 October 2018
1,254,930
45,000
-

USD Institutional Distributing
USD Retail Distributing**
Class C USD Accumulating*
Class C USD Distributing*
USD Retail Accumulating***
USD Institutional Accumulating^^^
Total

1,299,930

266,061
662
65,778
94,799
125,000
1,249,348
1,801,648

Shares redeemed
(1,261,382)
(45,627)
(4,948)
(12,580)
(258,888)
(1,583,425)

At 31 October 2019
259,609
35
60,830
82,219
125,000
990,460
1,518,153

* Share Class launched on 28 November 2018.
** Share Class fully redeemed on 26 March 2019 and re launched on 11 June 2019.
*** Share Class launched on 18 July 2019.
^^^ Share Class launched on 30 July 2019.
For the financial year ended 31 October 2018
At 31 October 2017

Shares issued

Shares redeemed

At 31 October 2018

-

1,254,930
45,000
1,299,930

-

1,254,930
45,000
1,299,930

USD Institutional Distributing
USD Retail Distributing**
Total
(1)

UTI India Balanced Fund was launched on 27 April 2018.
** Share Class launched on 25 May 2018.
Capital management
As a result of the ability to issue, repurchase and resell shares, the capital of the Company can vary depending on the demand for
redemptions and subscriptions to the Company. The Company has an externally imposed capital requirement as it is required to
maintain a minimum capital of €300,000. The Company has no legal restrictions on the issue, repurchase or resale of redeemable
shares beyond those included in the Company’s constitution and this externally imposed minimum capital requirement.
The Company’s objectives for managing capital are:
 To invest the capital in investments meeting the description, risk exposure and expected return indicated in its prospectus,
 To achieve consistent returns while safeguarding capital by investing in diversified portfolio, by participating in derivative
and other capital markets and by using various investment strategies and hedging techniques,
 To maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the expenses of the Company, and to meet redemption requests as they arise,
 To maintain sufficient size to make the operation of the Company cost-efficient.
7.

FEES

Investment Management Fee
UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited (the “Investment Manager”) shall be entitled to receive from the Company an annual
fee of 0.80% of the NAV of the Fund in respect of the Institutional Class, 1.70% of the NAV of the Fund in respect of the USD
Retail and Euro Retail Class, 0.80% of the NAV of the Fund in respect of the Euro Class, and 0.80% of the NAV of the Fund in
respect of the GBP RDR Class and USD RDR Class. The Investment Manager shall be entitled to be reimbursed by the Company
out of the assets of the Company any properly vouched reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by it on behalf of the Company.
During the financial year ended 31 October 2019, investment management fee amounted to US$2,009,528 (31 October 2018:
US$1,445,465). Investment management fee payable as at the financial year ended 31 October 2019 amounted to US$784,397 (31
October 2018: US$528,891).
Administrator’s Fee
The administrator shall be entitled to receive from the Company a maximum annual fee of 1.5% of the NAV of the company. Such
fee shall be calculated and accrued as at each Valuation Point and shall be payable monthly in arrears.
The Administrator shall also be entitled to be reimbursed out of the assets of the Company for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses
incurred by the Administrator in the proper performance of its duties.
During the financial year ended 31 October 2019, administration fee amounted to US$229,384 (31 October 2018: US$145,525).
Administration fee payable as at the financial year ended 31 October 2019 amounted to US$113,222 (31 October 2018: US$18,968).
35

UTI GOLDFINCH FUNDS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
7.

FEES(CONTINUED)

Collateral Management Fee
The Administrator also provides a collateral management service to the Company. There was no collateral management fee for the
financial year ended 31 October 2019 or 31 October 2018.
Depositary’s Fee
As at 31 October 2019, Citi Depository Services (Ireland) (the “Depositary”) is the Company’s Depositary. The Depositary shall be
entitled to receive from the Company a maximum annual fee of 0.5% of the NAV of the Company which shall consist of;
(a) a safekeeping fee, an annual fee billed and payable monthly based on the value of the month end assets. Safekeeping fees
calculated on a “per country” basis and include the safekeeping fees charged by the sub-depositaries.
(b) a fee per transaction, a per portfolio trade settlement which includes sub-depositaries expenses. All transactions are sent through
an STP process. Manual transactions will incur an extra fee of €15 per manual transaction.
(c) a fee for each third party fixed deposit, foreign exchange deal and outward payment affected by the Depositary on behalf of
each Fund. These transactions will incur a fee of US$10 per transaction.
Such fees shall be calculated and accrued as at each valuation point and shall be payable monthly in arrears, subject to a minimum
monthly global fee of USD $2,000 per Fund. The Depositary shall also be entitled to be reimbursed by each Fund out of the assets of
each Fund any properly vouched reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by it on behalf of each Fund.
During the financial year ended 31 October 2019 depositary fee amounted to US$165,341 (31 October 2018: US$124,269).
Depositary fee payable as at the financial year ended 31 October 2019 amounted to US$47,325 (31 October 2018: US$20,311).
Directors’ Fee
The Directors are authorised to charge a fee for their services at a rate determined by the Directors up to a maximum fee per Director
of €10,500 per annum and may be entitled to special remuneration if called upon to perform any special or extra services to the
Company. Simon McDowell received €9,375 (31 October 2018: €9,375), Samantha McConnell received €7,500 (31 October 2018:
€7,500) for the financial year ended 31 October 2019. Praveen Jagwani waived his fees for the financial year ended 31 October 2019
and 31 October 2018. All Directors will be entitled to reimbursement by the Company of expenses properly incurred in connection
with the business of the Company or the discharge of their duties.
During the financial year ended 31 October 2019 directors’ fee amounted to US$21,064 (31 October 2018: US$20,564). Directors’
fee payable as at the financial year ended 31 October 2019 amounted to US$2,133 (31 October 2018: US$10,499).
Auditor’s Fee
The total amounts earned by the statutory auditors, Ernst & Young for the provision of services to the Company for the financial year
ended 31 October 2019 and for the financial year ended 31 October 2018 were (inclusive of out of pocket expenses and excluding
Value Added Tax):
31 October 2019
USD
Statutory audit
Other assurance services
Tax advisory
Other non-audit services

31 October 2018
USD

47,998
-

29,815
-

Audit fee payable as at the financial year ended 31 October 2019 amounted to US$39,577 (31 October 2018: US$23,383).
Transaction Costs
Transaction costs on purchases and sales of equities for the financial year ended 31 October 2019 and 31 October 2018 are as
follows:
31 October 2019
USD
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund
UTI India Balanced Fund

360,480
6,886
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8.

TAXATION

Under current law and practice, the Company qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section 739B of the Taxes
Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. On that basis, it is not chargeable for Irish tax on its income or capital gains. However, Irish tax
can arise on the happening of a ”chargeable event” in the Company. A chargeable event includes any distribution payments to
shareholders or any encashment, redemption, cancellation or transfer of shares and the holding of shares at the end of each eight year
period beginning with the acquisition of such shares.
No Irish tax will arise in respect of chargeable events in respect of:
(a) A Shareholder who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes, at the time of the chargeable event,
provided appropriate valid declarations in accordance with the provisions of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended, are held
by the Company or the Company has been authorised by the Irish Revenue to make gross payments in the absence of appropriate
declarations; and
(b) certain exempted Irish tax resident shareholders who have provided the Company with the necessary signed statutory declarations.
Dividends, interest and capital gains (if any) received on investments made by the Company may be subject to taxes imposed by the
country from which the investment income/gains are received and such taxes may not be recoverable by the Company or its
shareholders.
On 1 April 2018, India introduced a taxation regime for long-term capital gains. As a result of this, the Funds introduced an accrual for
incremental long-term Indian capital gains earned since 1 April 2018.
For the financial year ended 31 October 2019, the Company incurred capital gains taxes on realised positions of US$346,512 (31
October 2018: US$30,051), the Company recognized an accrual for long-term Indian capital gains of US$4,343,966 and incurred
withholding tax of US$31,716 (31 October 2018: US$4,835).
9.

RELATED PARTIES

IFRS “Related Party Disclosures” requires the disclosure of information relating to material transactions with parties who are deemed
to be related to the reporting entity.
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party, regardless
of whether a price is charged.
(a)

Entities with significant influence over the Company

The Company has appointed UTI Asset Management Company Limited (the “Investment Advisor”) as Investment Advisor of the
Company. The Investment Advisor fees will be paid out of the fees of the Investment Manager.
The Company has delegated responsibility for the investment and re-investment of the Company’s assets to the Investment Manager,
UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited. During the financial year ended 31 October 2019 US$2,009,528 fees were incurred (31
October 2018: US$1,445,465) and US$784,397 was payable to the Investment Manager at the financial year end (31 October 2018:
US$528,891).
The Investment Manager holds total shares of 100,000 (31 October 2018: 100,000) of UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund with a value
of US$1,401,790 (31 October 2018: 1,166,540) and total shares of 259,609 (31 October 2018: 254,930) of UTI India Balanced Fund
with a value of US$2,609,174 (31 October 2018: US$2,277,800).
UTI Investment Management Company (Mauritius) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of UTI International Limited holds 101,240
shares of the UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund with a value of US$1,421,695 as at financial year ended 31 October 2019 (31 October
2018: US$1,183,105).
UTI International Limited holds 2,300,000 shares of the UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund with a value of US$32,241,170 as at
financial year ended 31 October 2019 (31 October 2018: US$26,830,420).
(b) Key management personnel of the Company
The Directors’ fees for the financial year are disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. During the financial year ended
31 October 2019 US$21,064 was incurred (31 October 2018: US$20,564) and US$2,133 was payable at the financial year end (31
October 2018: US$10,499).
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(c) Key management personnel of the Company (continued)
Praveen Jagwani held 5,000 shares in UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund during the financial year ended and as 31 October 2019,
with a value of US$70,090 as at the financial year ended 31 October 2019 (31 October 2018: US$58,327).
The Bridge Consulting Limited fee during the financial year ended 31 October 2019 was US$36,789 (31 October 2018:
US$28,785) and US$22,915 (31 October 2018: US$2,633) payable at financial year end.
(c) Significant Shareholders
There were no shareholders with significant holdings of at least 20 percent of the Funds at 31 October 2019 and 31 October 2018.
10.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

In accordance with IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures this note details the way in which the Company manages risks
associated with the use of financial instruments.
The Company is exposed to market price risk, interest rate risk, currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the
financial instruments the Company holds. The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on financial performance. The policies documented below are
standard operational practices and are reviewed on a continuous basis. In certain market conditions, the Manager may apply
additional risk procedures to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.
(a) Market Price Risk
Market price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial assets/liabilities will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market price risk arises from uncertainty about future prices of financial assets/liabilities held. It represents the
potential loss the Company might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements. The Board monitors the
Company’s characteristics in detail with the Investment Manager at least quarterly and in some cases monthly. The Investment
Manager also reviews the Company’s portfolio characteristics in their entirety. This review may include as appropriate a review of
capitalisation, distribution, industry sector weights, price/book levels, portfolio duration, sector exposure, quality exposure and
other key risk measures. The Company’s other price risk is managed in accordance with the UCITS Regulations and the limits set
forth in the prospectus.
As at 31 October 2019, the financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprises the following:

Financial assets
Equities
Government Bonds
Investment Funds
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

UTI India Dynamic
Equity Fund
USD
USD

UTI India
Balanced Fund
USD

283,542,763
283,542,763

6,208,359
8,424,778
482,205
15,115,342

The table below details the exposure to market price risk with a 0.5% increase/decrease in market prices with all other variables
remaining constant. This represents management’s best estimate of a reasonably possible shift.
Net asset movement if market prices had
increased/(decreased)by 0.5%

US$1,417,714

US$75,577

As at 31 October 2018, the financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprises the following:

Financial assets
Equities
Government Bonds
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

UTI India Dynamic
Equity Fund
USD
USD

UTI India
Balanced Fund
USD

141,042,613
141,042,613

3,589,998
7,553,497
11,143,495

The table below details the exposure to market price risk with a 0.5% increase/decrease in market prices with all other variables
remaining constant. This represents management’s best estimate of a reasonably possible shift.
Net asset movement if market prices had
increased/(decreased) by 0.5%

US$705,213
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(b) Interest Rate Risk
This risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial asset/liability will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Fixed interest rate debt securities are exposed to interest rate risk where the value of these securities may
fluctuate as a result of a change in market interest rates. The Company’s interest bearing assets are subject to changes in the level of
interest rates.
The tables below summarise the exposure to interest rate risk of UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund, including the assets and liabilities at
fair value for the financial year ended 31 October 2019
31 October 2019
Assets
Investments
Other Assets
Total Assets

Up to 1 year

1-5 years

Over 5 years

Total Value

USD
-

Non-Interest
Bearing
USD
283,542,763
996,012
284,538,775

USD
10,251,650
10,251,650

USD
-

-

-

-

(6,050,265)
(6,050,265)

(6,050,265)
(6,050,265)

10,251,650

-

-

278,488,510

288,740,160

USD
283,542,763
11,247,662
294,790,425

Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Total Net Assets

At 31 October 2018 all of UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund’s assets and liabilities were non-interest bearing with the exception of
cash and cash equivalents, which are classifies as having a maturity of less than one month.
The tables below summarise the exposure to interest rate risk of UTI India Balanced Fund, including the assets and liabilities at fair
value for the financial year ended 31 October 2019 and 31 October 2018.
31 October 2019
Assets
Investments
Other Assets
Total Assets

Up to 1 year

1-5 years

Over 5 years

Total Value

USD
881,176
881,176

Non-Interest
Bearing
USD
6,690,564
422,581
7,113,145

USD
292,025
292,025

USD
7,543,602
7,543,602

-

-

-

(435,571)
(435,571)

(435,571)
(435,571)

292,025

7,543,602

881,176

6,677,574

15,394,377

USD
15,115,342
714,606
15,829,948

Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Total Net Assets

A 0.5% increase/decrease in interest rates with all other variables remaining constant would amount to a US$94,822 movement in the
Company.
31 October 2018
Assets
Investments
Other Assets
Total Assets

Up to 1 year

1-5 years

Over 5 years

Total Value

USD
-

Non-Interest
Bearing
USD
3,589,998
221,895
3,811,893

USD
297,974
297,974

USD
7,553,497
7,553,497

-

-

-

(41,833)
(41,833)

(41,833)
(41,833)

297,974

7,553,497

-

3,770,060

11,621,531

USD
11,143,495
519,869
11,663,364

Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Total Net Assets

A 0.5% increase/decrease in interest rates with all other variables remaining constant would amount to a US$39,258 movement in the
Company.
The sensitivity of the profit/(loss) for the financial year is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on changes in fair value
of investments for the financial year, based on revaluing fixed rate financial assets at the end of the reporting year.
In practice, the actual trading results may differ from the below sensitivity analysis and the difference could be significant.
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(c) Currency Risk
The Company may hold assets denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of each Fund. The Funds are therefore
exposed to currency risk, as the value of the securities denominated in other currencies will fluctuate due to changes in exchange
rates. The Company may utilise financial instruments to hedge against fluctuations in the relative values of its portfolio positions in
addition to making active currency selections. The following table details the material currency exposures as at 31 October 2019
and as at 31 October 2018.
UTI India Dynamic
Equity Fund
Euro
Indian Rupee
Pound Sterling
UTI India Dynamic
Equity Fund
Euro
Indian Rupee
UTI India Balanced
Fund
Euro
Indian Rupee
UTI India Balanced
Fund
Indian Rupee

Monetary Assets
31 October2019
USD
9,038
292,709,832
79

Non-Monetary Assets
31 October 2019
USD
88,526
-

Total
31 October 2019
USD
9,038
292,798,358
79

Monetary Assets
31 October2018
USD
96

Non-Monetary Assets
31 October 2018
USD
-

Total
31 October 2018
USD
96

5,681,152

141,760,379

147,441,531

Monetary Assets
31 October2019
USD
805
14,975,722

Non-Monetary Assets
31 October 2019
USD
1,917

Total
31 October 2019
USD
805
14,977,639

Monetary Assets
31 October2018
USD
8,004,672

Non-Monetary Assets
31 October 2018
USD
3,594,339

Total
31 October 2018
USD
11,599,011

The table below details the approximate increase or decrease in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders’ for
the Funds had the exchange rate between the USD and the relevant foreign currency increased or decreased by 5% (based on
monetary items) as at 31 October 2019 and as at 31 October 2018.
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund

Foreign currency Exposure
Euro
Indian Rupee
Pound Sterling

31 October 2019
USD
452
14,635,492
4

31 October 2018
USD
5
7,336,188
-

31 October 2019
USD
40
748,786

31 October 2018
USD
579,734

UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund

Foreign currency Exposure
Euro
Indian Rupee
(d) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial asset/liability will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has
entered into with the Fund. The carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure at the
statement of financial position date. All physical securities and cash at bank balances are held by the Depositary, Citi Depositary
Services Ireland DAC. The credit rating of Citi Depositary Services Ireland DAC was A+ at 31 October 2019 (31 October 2018:
A+).
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(e) Liquidity Risk (continued)
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. Generally,
the Company’s assets are comprised of actively traded and highly liquid securities. The liquidity risks associated with the need to
satisfy shareholders’ requests for redemptions are mitigated by maintaining a liquid portfolio of assets which can be liquidated to
satisfy usual levels of demand. In addition, the Company may restrict redemptions and borrow monies on a temporary basis as
detailed in the Company’s Prospectus. The Investment Manager manages the Company’s liquidity position on a daily basis. Also,
the Investment Manager is able, through the provisions in the Prospectus, to defer the processing of redemptions of significant size
to facilitate an orderly disposition of securities in order to protect the interest of the remaining shareholders.
As at 31 October 2019, the Company’s liabilities were payable within 12 months as disclosed below:
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund
Liabilities
Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shareholders

On-demand Up to 1 month 1-3 months
6,050,265
-

UTI India Balanced Fund
Liabilities
Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shareholders

3-6 months
-

6-12 months
-

-

-

-

On-demand Up to 1month 1-3 months
435,571
-

3-6 months
-

6-12 months
-

-

-

3-6 months
-

6-12 months
-

288,740,160
288,740,160

15,394,377
15,394,377

6,050,265

435,571

-

As at 31 October 2018, the Company’s liabilities were payable within 12 months as disclosed below:
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund
Liabilities
Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shareholders

On-demand Up to 1 month 1-3 months
1,823,731
-

-

-

UTI India Balanced Fund
Liabilities
Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shareholders

On-demand Up to 1month 1-3 months
41,833
-

3-6 months
-

6-12 months
-

-

-

146,865,393
146,865,393

11,621,531
11,621,531

1,823,731

41,833

-

(f) Fair Value Hierarchy
IFRS 7 requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets are based o n quoted
market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. The Company adopted IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and uses last
traded market prices as its valuation inputs for listed securities. If market quotations are not available or are unrepresent ative,
estimation methods and valuation models may be used to calculate fair value.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

 Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

 Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety is determined on the basis
of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is
assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant
adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input
to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.
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(f) Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)
The following table summarise the Company’s financial assets by class within the fair value hierarchy at 31 October 2019:
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Equities
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

UTI India Balanced Fund

Level 1
USD

Level 2
USD

Level 3
USD

Total
USD

283,542,763
283,542,763

-

Level 1
USD

Level 2
USD

Level 3
USD

Total
USD

6,208,359
482,205
6,690,564

8,424,778
8,424,778

-

6,208,359
8,424,778
482,205
15,115,342

- 283,542,763
- 283,542,763

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Equities
Government Bonds
Investment Funds
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The following table summarise the Company’s financial assets by class within the fair value hierarchy at 31 October 2018:
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Equities
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

UTI India Balanced Fund

Level 1
USD

Level 2
USD

Level 3
USD

Total
USD

141,042,613
141,042,613

-

Level 1
USD

Level 2
USD

Level 3
USD

Total
USD

3,589,998
3,589,998

7,553,497
7,553,497

-

3,589,998
7,553,497
11,143,495

- 141,042,613
- 141,042,613

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Equities
Government Bonds
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of financial assets approximates their carrying value. Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in
active markets are classified within Level 1. There were no Level 3 securities held by the Company during the financial year ended
31 October 2019 and 31 October 2018.
Transfers between levels are deemed to have occurred when the pricing source for a particular security has changed which triggers a
change in level as defined under IFRS 7. There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the financial year ended 31
October 2019 and 31 October 2018.
11. EFFICIENT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT
The Company will not invest in derivatives instruments (including structured deposits, products or instruments) for
investment or hedging purposes. Furthermore, the Company itself will not be leveraged for investment, efficient portfolio
management or hedging purposes.
12. SOFT COMISSION AND DIRECT BROKERAGE ARRANGEMENTS
No soft commission and direct brokerage arrangements were entered into during the financial year ended 31 October 2019 and 31
October 2018.
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13. EXCHANGE RATES
The following exchange rates were used to convert the instruments and other assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the base currency at 31 October 2019 and 31 October 2018:
31 October 2019
USD

31 October 2018
USD

0.897
70.927
0.772
1.361

0.881
73.943
0.783
1.385

Euro
Indian Rupee
Pound Sterling
Singapore Dollar
14. CONTINGENT LIABILITY

There were no contingent liabilities at 31 October 2019 or 31 October 2018.
15. COMMITTED DEALS
There were no committed deals at 31 October 2019 or 31 October 2018.
16. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
UTI India Balanced Fund launched Class C USD Accumulating and Class C USD Distributing on 28 November 2018.
UTI India Balanced Fund the USD Retail Distributing fully redeemed on 26 March 2019 and re launched on 11 June 2019.
UTI India Balanced Fund launched USD Retail Accumulating on 18 July 2019.
UTI India Balanced Fund launched USD Institutional Accumulating on 30 July 2019.
UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund launched USD RDR II Distributing on 10 October 2019.
The following share classes EUR RDR Accumulating, USD RDR II Accumulating, GBP RDR II Accumulating and GBP RDR II
Distributing on the UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund were registered but not launched at 31 October 2019.
The following share classes USD RDR Accumulating, USD RDR Distributing, GBP RDR Distributing, EUR Retail Distributing and
EUR Institutional Distributing on the UTI India Balanced Fund were registered but not launched at 31 October 2019.
There were no other significant events affecting the Company during the financial period that require amendment to or disclosure in
the financial statements.
17. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SINCE THE FINANCIAL YEAR END
There were no significant events affecting the Company after the financial year end that require amendment to or disclosure in the
financial statements.
18. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors approved the financial statements on 24 February 2020.
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS IN NORWAY AND SWITZERLAND
Following a guideline from the Swiss Funds Association (the “SFA”) dated 27 July 2004, the Investment Manager is required to
supply performance data in conformity with these guidelines. This data can be found below:
Total Expense Ratio(2)

UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund
USD Institutional Accumulating
USD Retail Accumulating
EUR Institutional Accumulating
EUR Retail Accumulating
GBP RDR Accumulating
USD RDR Accumulating
USD RDR II Distributing^
UTI India Balanced Fund(1)
USD Institutional Distributing
USD Retail Distributing**
Class C USD Accumulating*
Class C USD Distributing*
USD Retail Accumulating***
USD Institutional Accumulating^^^

31 October 2019
Total Expense Ratio
1.11%
2.02%
1.08%
2.01%
1.12%
1.13%
0.98%

31 October 2018
Total Expense Ratio
1.22%
2.09%
1.21%
2.08%
1.25%
1.22%
-

1.95%
3.02%
3.14%
3.18%
2.97%
2.17%

2.61%
3.22%
-

(2 )The

Total Expense Ratio does not include foreign exchange gains or losses, front or back end loads arising from the purchase or sale
of other schemes and tax deducted at source or arising out of income received.
Performance Data
The table below details the performance of the Company for the financial year to 31 October 2019 and for the financial year ended 31
October 2018.
Total Return
31 October 2019

Total Return
31 October 2018

Total Return
from inception through
to 31 October 2019

7.48%
6.68%
10.40%
9.57%
7.46%
5.89%
-

(7.93%)
(8.79%)
(5.52%)
(6.36%)
(4.69%)
(7.93%)
-

8.17%
7.22%
8.78%
9.00%
7.86%
7.68%
-

7.05%
8.93%
5.27%
7.26%
-

-

2.80%
5.31%
7.93%
9.98%
0.86%
1.68%

UTI India Dynamic Equity Fund
USD Institutional Accumulating
USD Retail Accumulating
EUR Institutional Accumulating
EUR Retail Accumulating
GBP RDR Accumulating
USD RDR Accumulating
USD RDR II Distributing^
UTI India Balanced Fund(1)
USD Institutional Distributing
USD Retail Distributing**
Class C USD Accumulating*
Class C USD Distributing*
USD Retail Accumulating***
USD Institutional Accumulating^^^
(1)

UTI India Balanced Fund was launched on 27 April 2018.
* Share Class launched on 28 November 2018.
** Share Class Launched on 25 May 2018 and fully redeemed on 26 March 2019 and re launched on 11 June 2019.
*** Share Class launched on 18 July 2019.
^^^ Share Class launched on 30 July 2019.
^ Share Class launched on 10 October 2019.
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APPENDIX 2 - DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION (UNAUDITED)
31 October 2019
Remuneration Policy of the Company
The Company has designed and implements a remuneration policy (the “Remuneration Policy”) which is consistent with and promotes
sound and effective risk management by having a business model which by its nature does not promote excessive risk taking that is
inconsistent with the risk profile or the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. The Remuneration Policy is
consistent with the business strategy, objectives, values and interests of the Company and the Shareholders of the Company and
includes measures to avoid conflicts of interest. The Company is a self-managed investment company and does not employ any staff
directly and it has no branches or subsidiaries.
The Remuneration Policy applies to those categories of staff, including senior management, risk takers, control functions and any
employee receiving total remuneration that falls into the remuneration bracket of senior management and risk takers, whose
professional activities have a material impact on the risk profiles of the Company.
The Company has determined that the following persons fall within the definition of “Identified Staff”:
Members of the Board of Directors; and
Designated Persons responsible for the monitoring of certain management functions of the Company.
In line with the provisions of the UCITS Directive and ESMA Guidelines on Sound Remuneration Policies under the UCITS Directive
and AIFMD (ESMA/2016/575) (the “ESMA Remuneration Guidelines”) each of which may be amended from time to time, the
Company applies its remuneration policy and practices in a way and to the extent that is proportionate to its size, its internal
organisation and the nature, scope and complexity of its activities.
Where the Company delegates investment management functions in respect of the Company or any sub-fund of the Company,
appropriate contractual arrangements are put in place to ensure that there is no circumvention of the remuneration rules set out in the
ESMA Remuneration Guidelines.
Remuneration of Identified Staff
The only identified staff of the Company are the members of the Board of Directors of the Company and the designated persons from
Bridge Consulting (the “Designated Persons”).
The members of the Board of Directors of the Company who are not affiliated with UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited (the
“Investment Manager”) receive a fixed fee only with no variable component and do not receive performance-based remuneration
therefore avoiding a potential conflict of interest. The basic fee of a Board member who is not affiliated with the Investment Manager is
set at a level that is on par with the rest of the market, is determined by the Board as a whole, reflects the qualifications and contribution
required in view of the Company’s complexity, the extent of the responsibilities and the number of board meetings.
The Designated Persons do not receive remuneration of any kind individually from the Company. The services of the Designated
Persons are provided to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter between Bridge Consulting Limited and the Company whereby
the Designated Persons are seconded to the Company on a part-time basis
Remuneration of Identified Staff of the Investment Manager
The additional disclosures below are provided in relation to senior management and other identified staff of, the Investment Manager
whose actions have a material impact on the risk profile of the sub-funds (“Identified Staff of the Investment Manager”).
All individuals included in the aggregated figures disclosed are rewarded in line with the Investment Manager’s remuneration policy
for their responsibilities across the relevant business area. As all Identified Staff of the Investment Manager have a number of areas of
responsibility, only the portion of remuneration for those Identified Staff whose services are attributable to the sub-funds are included
in the aggregate figures disclosed.
Members of staff and senior management of the Investment Manager typically provide services in respect of multiple funds, clients and
functions of the Investment Manager. Therefore, the figures disclosed are a sum of each Identified Staff member’s portion of
remuneration attributable to the sub-funds according to an objective appointment methodology which acknowledges the multipleservice nature of the Investment Manager. Accordingly, the figures are representative of the Identified Staff’s actual remuneration and
their remuneration structure in respect of the sub-funds only.
The amount of total remuneration awarded by the Investment Manager to the Identified Staff of the Investment Manager in respect of
the financial year ended 31 October, 2019 is $2,000,000. The amount attributed towards the Company is $437,200. There were a total
of 22 beneficiaries of the remuneration.
Details of the Remuneration Policy
Details of the Remuneration Policy of the Company, including, but not limited to, a description of how remuneration and benefits are
calculated and the identity of persons responsible for awarding the remuneration and benefits is available at the following website
http://utifunds.com.sg/.
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UTI INDIA DYNAMIC EQUITY FUND
APPENDIX 3 - SCHEDULE OF PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE FINANCIALYEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER
2019 (UNAUDITED)
Listed below are the largest cumulative investment purchases and sales during the financial year 31 October 2019 in excess of 1%
of total purchases and in excess of 1% of total sales.

Portfolio Securities
HDFC Bank
Housing Development Finance Corp
Larsen & Toubro Infotech
Tata Consultancy Services
Kotak Mahindra Bank
Bajaj Finance
IndusInd Bank
Astral Poly Technik
Motherson Sumi Systems
Infosys
RBL Bank
AU Small Finance Bank
Info Edge India
Shree Cement
Maruti Suzuki India
Syngene International
Divi's Laboratories
Berger Paints India
Dabur India
Eicher Motors
City Union Bank
Nestle India
Marico
Avenue Supermarts
Endurance Technologies
Ipca Laboratories
Schaeffler India
Cadila Healthcare
Metropolis Healthcare
Crompton Greaves Consumer Electricals
Jubilant Foodworks
Amara Raja Batteries
Hindustan Zinc
Pidilite Industries
Titan Co
Mindtree

Acquisition Cost
USD
22,463,644
7,588,626
7,339,605
6,878,748
6,070,067
6,053,834
5,926,022
4,400,193
4,299,867
4,109,839
4,016,215
3,800,603
3,576,259
3,484,242
3,113,811
2,978,711
2,604,272
2,397,521
2,395,067
2,307,322
2,246,006
2,214,742
2,167,126
2,151,950
2,059,748
1,912,291
1,818,335
1,781,268
1,781,239
1,772,877
1,770,195
1,703,282
1,679,785
1,656,741
1,653,100
1,547,182

Portfolio Securities
HDFC Bank
Mindtree
Bajaj Finance
GRUH Finance
Yes Bank
Syngene International
Lupin
Motherson Sumi Systems
Astral Poly Technik
ITC
Tata Consultancy Services
Emami
Housing Development Finance Corp
Kotak Mahindra Bank
IndusInd Bank
Shree Cement
Jubilant Foodworks
Torrent Pharmaceuticals
Divi's Laboratories
Titan Co

Disposal Proceeds
USD
14,785,079
3,608,652
3,256,212
2,603,132
2,399,328
1,571,970
1,551,141
1,452,075
1,438,160
1,390,875
1,214,288
1,111,030
842,202
837,274
806,537
640,216
535,834
529,659
436,180
411,220

A copy of the list of changes in the portfolio during the financial year may be obtained free of charge from the company’s
Administrator.
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UTI INDIA BALANCED FUND
APPENDIX 3 - SCHEDULE OF PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER
2019 (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)
Listed below are the largest cumulative investment purchases and sales during the financial year ended 31 October 2019 in excess of
1% of total purchases and in excess of 1% of total sales.

Portfolio Securities

Maturity Date

Quantity

Acquisition Cost
USD

16/04/2023

250,000,000
993,378
60,000,000
27,245
20,000,000
6,450
4,635
5,860
2,470
3,500
7,338
5,125
11,870
42,400
9,070
7,240
2,245
12,025
12,360
206

3,541,576
993,378
920,713
492,851
281,569
151,630
136,238
121,767
115,989
109,307
104,253
103,150
87,788
85,479
84,241
80,261
68,017
56,908
56,620
55,909

Maturity Date

Quantity

Disposal Proceeds
USD

19/12/2022
16/04/2023

250,000,000
50,000,000
511,173
11,405
20,000,000
2,740
7,136
18,500
41,400
2,520
12,200
13,700
3,550
1,500
3,400
5,050
800
3,300
1,825
850

3,595,805
751,085
511,173
355,052
295,446
119,054
100,793
66,965
64,648
59,140
43,607
40,837
39,520
33,377
29,704
28,324
21,324
20,276
18,669
16,336

India Government Bond 7.37%
Goldman Sachs plc - US$ Treasury Liquid Reserves Fund
India Government Bond 7.26%
HDFC Bank
India Government Bond 7.16%
Larsen & Toubro Infotech
Housing Development Finance Corp
IndusInd Bank
Bajaj Finance
Tata Consultancy Services
Astral Poly Technik
Kotak Mahindra Bank
RBL Bank
Motherson Sumi Systems
AU Small Finance Bank
Infosys
Info Edge India
Berger Paints India
Syngene International
Shree Cement

Portfolio Securities

14/01/2029
20/05/2023

Astral Poly Technik 6.84%
India Government Bond 7.37%
Goldman Sachs plc - US$ Treasury Liquid Reserves Fund
HDFC Bank
India Government Bond 7.16%
Bajaj Finance
Mindtree
GRUH Finance
Yes Bank
Astral Poly Technik
ITC
Motherson Sumi Systems
Lupin
IndusInd Bank
Syngene International
Emami
Torrent Pharmaceuticals
Berger Paints India
Infosys
Symphony

20/05/2023

A copy of the list of changes in the portfolio during the financial year may be obtained free of charge from the company’s
Administrator.
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